
Judy Y. Jenkins 
Managing Attorney 
7421 West 129th Street 
Overland Park, KS 66213 
P:  913-319-8615 
E: judy.jenkins@onegas.com 

May 31, 2016 

Amy L. Green, Secretary to Commission 
Kansas Corporation Commission 
1500 Arrowhead Road 
Topeka, Kansas 66604 

Re:  In the matter of the Kansas Gas Service Compliance Docket as Established in Docket 
No. 06-GIMX-181-GIV.  Docket No. 11-KGSG-820-CPL  

Dear Ms. Green 

In accordance with the Commission’s order in Docket No. 06-GIMX-181-GIV, KGS is 
confirming that for 2015, no changes have been made to the cost allocation manual 
previously filed with the Kansas Corporation Commission. 

The documents and information filed in this docket at this time are not classified as 
confidential, but as additional filings are made in this docket to address periodic filing 
requirements or informational requests, Kansas Gas Service reserves the right to classify 
information that is confidential in nature under the designation “CONFIDENTIAL." 

In accordance with the Report of the Commission Staff and the Active Participating Utilities 
dated October 27, 2010 and the Commission's Order of December 3, 2010, in Docket No. 
06-GIMX- 181-GIV, Kansas Gas Service files the following documents:

A.1. Cost Allocation Manual (CAM).
A.2. Not applicable.
B.1. Corporate Organization Chart
B.2. List of Associated Companies and Descriptions
B.3. List of Officers and Directors
B.4. Summaries of Debt Agreements.
B.5. Balance Sheet and Income Statement for Consolidated Utility
Operations
B.6. Financial Rations for consolidated Utility Operations
C.1. Not applicable.
C.2. Not applicable
C.3. List of Equity and Credit Analysts following ONE Gas, Inc., whose
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1. A complete detailed organization chart identifying each regulated utility and each
associate company;

2. A detailed description of the activities and business conducted at each non-utility
associate company;

3. An organizational chart of personnel that includes a list of all directors, corporate
officers, and other key personnel shared by any jurisdictional public utility and any non-
utility associate company or holding company, if any, along with a description of each
person’s duties and responsibilities to each entity;

4. Summaries of each mortgage, loan document and debt agreement, including a discussion
of the type of collateral or security pledged to support the debt.  The utility will also
describe any loan or debt agreement taken out to finance an unregulated affiliate that
encumbers utility property or cash-flow for security;

5. To the extent financial separations are maintained for either legal or financial accounting
purposes and at a level in which financial statements are reasonably capable of being
produced by the utility’s accounting system, each jurisdictional public utility shall file
income statements, balance sheets and cash flow statements for (1) consolidated utility
operations; (2) consolidated non-regulated operations; and (3) consolidated corporate
financials; (this information is confidential) and

6. To the extent financial separations are maintained for either legal or financial accounting
purposes and at a level in which financial statements are reasonably capable of being
produced by the utility’s accounting system, each jurisdictional public utility shall file a
summary of financial ratios as of the end of the last completed fiscal year, as described
by way of example in the attachment to these rules and consistent with the method used
to report such information to the principal bond rating agency or Standard & Poors for (1)
consolidated utility operations; (2) consolidated non-regulated operations; and (3)
consolidated corporate financials (this information is confidential).

KGS Response 

B. 

1. Please see the attached organization chart, containing KGS affiliated entities within ONE 
Gas as of December 31, 2015.

2. ONE Gas does not own, either directly or indirectly, any non-utility associate companies.
3. ONE Gas does not share directors, officers, or other personnel between utility and non-utility

operations.
4. Please see the attached summary of debt agreements.  There is no utility debt that encumbers 

utility property used to finance unregulated affiliates.
5. Please see the attached income statements and balance sheet information for ONE Gas which 

was included in the Fiscal 2015 10-K filing.
6. Please see the attached financial ratios for the consolidated utility operation. 

KCC Requirement 



C. Each jurisdictional public utility shall provide to the Director of Utilities and the Chief of 
Accounting and Financial Analysis at the Commission concurrent with the filing of 8-K 
disclosures the following: 

1. Written or verbal notice of any affiliate of the jurisdictional public utility or holding 
company, if any, that has an affiliate that has defaulted on a material obligation or debt 
for the purpose of 8-K reporting. 

2. Written or verbal notice of any requests by any jurisdictional public utility or holding 
company, if any, for material waivers or amendments as provided for the purpose of 8-K 
reporting to debt agreements that secure, encumber, or finance any jurisdictional public 
utility’s assets.  

3. Each jurisdictional public utility shall file reports published by credit rating agencies and 
equity analysts regarding the utility’s regulated and unregulated business within 10 days 
after publication of the report and its receipt by the utility.  A public utility shall not be 
required to file reports that the utility has not received, or reports that cannot be 
disseminated or reproduced because of copyright or contractual restrictions.  

4. A summary of any debt secured or encumbered, in any way, by the assets of any 
jurisdictional public utility on behalf of a non-utility affiliate or holding company, if any.   

KGS Response 

C. 

1. KGS will provide written or verbal notice concurrently, in the event that any affiliate defaults on 
a material obligation or debt for the purpose of 8-K reporting.  Neither ONE Gas, nor any of its 
affiliates, has defaulted on a material obligation or debt.  

2. KGS will provide written or verbal notice of any requests by a jurisdictional public utility or 
holding company if it seeks a material waiver or amendments as provided for the purpose of 8-K 
reporting to debt agreements that secure, encumber, or finance any jurisdictional public utility’s 
assets. No such requests have been made.   

3. ONE Gas receives credit rating and equity analyst reports under an agreement with an outside 
vendor.  According to the terms of the agreement, ONE Gas is prohibited from releasing these 
reports to third parties.   Approval has been obtained to provide a copy of these reports for KCC 
Staff review, which have been submitted to KCC Staff in response to discovery requests in 
Docket 16-KGSG-491-RTS and such information is considered highly confidential.  

Equity analysts covering ONE Gas include: 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 
Edward Jones 
Gabelli & Co. 
Hilliard Lyons 
ISI Natural Gas & Midstream 
Jefferies 
Morgan Stanley 
U. S. Capital Advisors  
 



Credit analysts reporting on ONE Gas debt include: 
Moody’s  
S&P 

 

4. ONE Gas does not have any debt issuances that are secured or encumbered with the assets of 
KGS.     
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ONE Gas, Inc.

Maturity 2019 2024 2044 5-Year Credit Agreement Indenture - US Bank
Issue Date 1/27/14 1/27/14 1/27/14 1/31/14 1/27/14

Maturity Date 2/1/19 2/1/24 2/1/44 1/2019 -

Rate
2.07% 3.61% 4.66%

Eurodollar plus 1%,
Prime, or

Fed Funds plus 0.5% -
Principal $300,000,000 $300,000,000 $600,000,000 $700,000,000 -

Annual Interest $6,210,000 $10,830,000 $27,948,000 $560,000 (Facility Fee) -
Payments 2/1, 8/1 2/1, 8/1 2/1, 8/1 - -

CUSIP 68235PAD0 68235PAE8 68235PAF5 -
Trustee US Bank US Bank US Bank BOA (Administrative Agent) -

Morgan Stanley Morgan Stanley Morgan Stanley RBS US Bank
JPM / BOA / RBS JPM / BOA / RBS JPM / BOA / RBS JPMorgan

Callable anytime prior to 1/1/2019 anytime prior to 11/1/2023 anytime prior to 8/1/2043 - -

None None None - -

Indenture 1/27/14 1/27/14 1/27/14 - -
Same as Indenture Same as Indenture Same as Indenture Compliance Certificates Comp Certificates

(Annual compliance cert) (Annual compliance cert) (Annual compliance cert) Certain SEC filings
Fail to pay Int/Princ/Prem Fail to pay Int/Princ/Prem Fail to pay Int/Princ/Prem CF Events of Default

Interest: 30 days Interest: 30 days 30 days notice: Int (Sec 8.01)

See Indenture
Events of  
Default

Covenants: 90 days Covenants: 90 days Covenants: 90 days
Def on Agmt>$100MM Def on Agmt>$100MM Def on Agmt>$15MM

Bankruptcy, Reorganization Bankruptcy, Reorganization Bankruptcy, Reorganization
See CF Covenants

Limitations on Liens Liens Language 1 Liens Language 1 Liens Language 1 (Sec 7.01)

Lim on S/L S/L Language 1 S/L Language 1 S/L Language 1 None
See Indenture

Limitation on SaleLeaseback
Amendments, 

Supplements and 
Waivers

ASW 1 ASW 1 ASW 1 None See each note

Defeasance Defeasance Language 1 Defeasance Language 1 Defeasance Language 1 None See each note
See CF Covenants
(Sec 6.01 - 7.09)

See Indenture
Limitation
on Liens

See Indenture
Covenants

See Covenants 1 See Covenants 1 See Covenants 1Covenants

Lead Bank(s)

Premium

Filing

Events of Def
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ITEM 8.    FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ONE Gas, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of income, comprehensive income, equity and cash flows present fairly in all material
respects, the financial position of ONE Gas, Inc. (the Company) at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three  years  in  the  period  ended  December  31,  2015  in  conformity  with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America.  Also  in  our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established
in Internal
Control
-
Integrated
Framework
(2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management  is  responsible  for  these  financial  statements,  for  maintaining  effective  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  and  for  its  assessment  of  the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits (which
were integrated audits in 2015 and 2014). We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States).  Those  standards  require  that  we plan  and perform the  audits  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the  financial  statements  are  free  of  material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates  made  by  management,  and  evaluating  the  overall  financial  statement  presentation.  Our  audit  of  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and  dispositions  of  the  assets  of  the  company;  (ii)  provide  reasonable  assurance  that  transactions  are  recorded  as  necessary  to  permit  preparation  of  financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations  of  management  and  directors  of  the  company;  and  (iii)  provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding  prevention  or  timely  detection  of  unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because  of  its  inherent  limitations,  internal  control  over  financial  reporting  may  not  prevent  or  detect  misstatements.  Also,  projections  of  any  evaluation  of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
February 18, 2016
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ONE Gas, Inc.       
STATEMENTS OF INCOME       
       
  Years Ended December 31,

  2015  2014  2013

  ( Thousands
of
dollars,
except
per
share
amounts
)

       
Revenues  $ 1,547,692  $ 1,818,906  $ 1,689,952

Cost of natural gas  705,959  991,949  876,944

Net margin  841,733  826,957  813,008

Operating expenses       

Operations and maintenance  414,476  420,686  393,072

Depreciation and amortization  133,023  125,722  144,758

General taxes  55,105  55,255  54,830

Total operating expenses  602,604  601,663  592,660

Operating income  239,129  225,294  220,348

Other income  263  1,625  6,165

Other expense  (2,813)  (2,949)  (3,680)

Interest expense  (44,570)  (45,842)  (61,366)

Income before income taxes  192,009  178,128  161,467

Income taxes  (72,979)  (68,338)  (62,272)

Net income  $ 119,030  $ 109,790  $ 99,195

       
Earnings per share       

Basic  $ 2.26  $ 2.10  $ 1.90

Diluted  $ 2.24  $ 2.07  $ 1.90

       
Average shares ( thousands
)       

Basic  52,578  52,364  52,319

Diluted  53,254  52,946  52,319

Dividends declared per share of stock  $ 1.20  $ 0.84  $ —

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.       
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME       

       
  Years Ended December 31,

  2015  2014  2013

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Net income  $ 119,030  $ 109,790  $ 99,195

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax       
Change in pension and other postemployment benefit plans liability, net of tax of $(483), $1,244, and $0,

respectively  773  (1,781)  —

Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax  773  (1,781)  —

Comprehensive income  $ 119,803  $ 108,009  $ 99,195
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.   
BALANCE SHEETS   

 December 31, December 31,
 2015 2014

Assets ( Thousands
of
dollars
)
Property, plant and equipment   

Property, plant and equipment $ 5,132,682 $ 4,850,201
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,620,771 1,556,481

Net property, plant and equipment 3,511,911 3,293,720

Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 2,433 11,943
Accounts receivable, net 216,343 326,749

Materials and supplies  33,325  27,511

Income tax receivable  38,877  43,800
Natural gas in storage 142,153 185,300
Regulatory assets 32,925 50,193
Other current assets 16,789 22,005

Total current assets 482,845 667,501

Goodwill and other assets   
Regulatory assets 435,863 478,723
Goodwill 157,953 157,953
Other assets 55,838 51,313

Total goodwill and other assets 649,654 687,989

Total assets $ 4,644,410 $ 4,649,210

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.   
BALANCE SHEETS   
(Continued)
 December 31, December 31,
 2015 2014

Equity and Liabilities ( Thousands
of
dollars
)
Equity and long-term debt

Common stock, $0.01 par value:
authorized 250,000,000 shares; issued 52,598,005 shares and outstanding 52,259,224 shares at
December 31, 2015; authorized 250,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding 52,083,859 shares at
December 31, 2014 $ 526 $ 521

Paid-in capital 1,764,875 1,758,796
Retained earnings 95,046 39,894
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (4,401) (5,174)
Treasury stock, at cost: 338,781 shares at December 31, 2015 and no shares at December 31, 2014 (14,491) —

Total equity 1,841,555 1,794,037

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 1,201,305 1,201,311

Total equity and long-term debt 3,042,860 2,995,348

Current liabilities   
Current maturities of long-term debt 7 6

Notes payable  12,500  42,000
Accounts payable 107,482 159,064

Accrued interest  18,873  18,872
Accrued taxes other than income 37,249 44,742
Accrued liabilities 31,470 26,019
Customer deposits 60,325 60,003
Regulatory liabilities 24,615 32,467
Other current liabilities 11,700 9,260

Total current liabilities 304,221 392,433

Deferred credits and other liabilities   
Deferred income taxes 951,785 894,585

Employee benefit obligations  272,309  287,779
Other deferred credits 73,235 79,065

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 1,297,329 1,261,429

Commitments and contingencies

Total liabilities and equity $ 4,644,410 $ 4,649,210

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.    
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
 2015 2014 2013

 ( Thousands
of
dollars
)
Operating activities    

Net income $ 119,030 $ 109,790 $ 99,195
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 133,023 125,722 144,758
Deferred income taxes 63,789 49,935 62,205
Share-based compensation expense 9,187 7,613 —
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,520 7,195 5,460
Changes in assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable 105,886 23,044 (102,142)

Materials and supplies  (5,814)  10,868  (1,668)
Income tax receivable 4,923 (43,800) —
Natural gas in storage 43,147 (19,172) (63,139)
Asset removal costs (51,608) (47,125) (46,567)
Affiliate payable — — (8,140)
Accounts payable (59,635) (6,881) 37,241

Accrued interest  1  18,743  (1)
Accrued taxes other than income (7,493) 12,316 2,449
Accrued liabilities 5,451 21,228 (5,443)
Customer deposits 322 2,643 (727)
Regulatory assets and liabilities 50,658 30,067 29,436
Employee benefit obligation (15,033) (10,102) —
Other assets and liabilities (6,147) (45,421) 1,291

Cash provided by operating activities 394,207 246,663 154,208

Investing activities    
Capital expenditures (294,320) (297,103) (292,080)
Proceeds from sale of assets — — 1,327

Cash used in investing activities (294,320) (297,103) (290,753)

Financing activities    
Settlement of short-term notes payable to ONEOK, net — — 150,851
Borrowings on notes payable, net (29,500) 42,000 —

Repurchase of common stock  (24,122)  —  —
Issuance of debt, net of discounts — 1,199,994 —
Long-term debt financing costs — (11,087) —
Cash payment to ONEOK upon separation — (1,130,000) —
Issuance of common stock 7,051 2,001 —
Dividends paid (62,826) (43,696) —
Repayment of long-term debt — — (206)
Distributions to ONEOK — — (14,969)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (109,397) 59,212 135,676

Change in cash and cash equivalents (9,510) 8,772 (869)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 11,943 3,171 4,040

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,433 $ 11,943 $ 3,171

Supplemental cash flow information:   
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 42,980 $ 21,066 $ —

Cash paid to ONEOK for interest, net of amounts capitalized  $ —  $ —  $ 61,366
Cash (received) paid for income taxes, net $ (5,423) $ 44,603 $ —
Cash paid to ONEOK for income taxes $ — $ — $ 67

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.     

STATEMENTS OF EQUITY     
     

 
Common Stock

Issued Common Stock Paid-in Capital Retained Earnings

 (Shares) ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

     
January 1, 2013 — $ — $ — $ —
Net income — — — —
Distributions to ONEOK — — — —
Common stock issued 100 — — —

December 31, 2013 100 — — —

Net income — — — 84,214
Other comprehensive loss — — — —
Net transfers from ONEOK — — — —
Reclassification of Owner’s net investment to paid-in capital — — 1,749,078 —
Issuance of common stock at the separation 51,941,136 520 (520) —
Common stock issued 142,623 1 9,614 —
Common stock dividends - $0.84 per share — — 624 (44,320)

December 31, 2014 52,083,859 521 1,758,796 39,894

Net income — — — 119,030
Other comprehensive income — — — —
Repurchase of common stock — — — —
Common stock issued 514,146 5 5,027 —
Common stock dividends - $1.20 per share — — 1,052 (63,878)

December 31, 2015 52,598,005 $ 526 $ 1,764,875 $ 95,046

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.     

STATEMENTS OF EQUITY   
(Continued)     

 Treasury Stock
Owner’s Net
Investment

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss) Total Equity

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

     
January 1, 2013 $ — $ 1,154,797 $ — $ 1,154,797
Net income — 99,195 — 99,195
Distributions to ONEOK — (14,969) — (14,969)
Common stock issued — — — —

December 31, 2013 — 1,239,023 — 1,239,023

Net income — 25,576 — 109,790
Other comprehensive loss — — (1,781) (1,781)
Net transfers from ONEOK — 484,479 (3,393) 481,086
Reclassification of Owner’s net investment to paid-in capital — (1,749,078) — —
Issuance of common stock at the separation — — — —
Common stock issued — — — 9,615
Common stock dividends - $0.84 per share — — — (43,696)

December 31, 2014 — — (5,174) 1,794,037

Net income — — — 119,030
Other comprehensive income — — 773 773
Repurchase of common stock (24,122) — — (24,122)
Common stock issued 9,631 — — 14,663
Common stock dividends - $1.20 per share — — — (62,826)

December 31, 2015 $ (14,491) $ — $ (4,401) $ 1,841,555

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ONE Gas, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Nature of Operations  - Prior to January 31, 2014, ONE Gas was a wholly owned subsidiary of ONEOK and comprised its former natural gas
distribution business. On January 8, 2014, ONEOK’s board of directors approved the distribution of all the shares of our common stock to holders of ONEOK
common stock. On January 31, 2014, we became an independent, publicly traded company as a result of a distribution by ONEOK of our common stock to
ONEOK’s shareholders. Our common stock began trading “regular-way” under the ticker symbol “OGS” on the NYSE on February 3, 2014.

We provide natural gas distribution services to more than 2 million customers through our divisions in Oklahoma, Kansas and Texas through Oklahoma Natural
Gas, Kansas Gas Service and Texas Gas Service, respectively. We serve residential, commercial, industrial and transportation customers in all three states. In
addition, we also provide natural gas distribution services to wholesale and public authority customers.

Basis of Presentation - Prior to our separation from ONEOK, our financial statements were derived from ONEOK’s financial statements, which included its
natural gas distribution business as if we, for accounting purposes, had been a separate company for all periods presented. The assets and liabilities in the financial
statements have been reflected on a historical basis. The financial statements for periods prior to the separation also include expense allocations for certain
corporate functions historically performed by ONEOK, including allocations of general corporate expenses related to executive oversight, accounting, treasury,
tax, legal, information technology and other services. We believe our assumptions underlying the financial statements, including the assumptions regarding the
allocation of general corporate expenses from ONEOK, are reasonable. However, the financial statements may not include all of the actual expenses that would
have been incurred by us and may not reflect our results of operations, financial position and cash flows had we been a separate publicly traded company during
the periods presented prior to the separation.

Because the operations of the natural gas distribution business within ONEOK were conducted through separate divisions, ONEOK’s net investment in us,
excluding the long-term line of credit with ONEOK, is shown as owner’s net investment in lieu of equity in the financial statements prior to the separation.
Transactions between ONEOK and us that were not part of the long-term line of credit with ONEOK or the short-term note payable to ONEOK have been
identified in the Statements of Equity as a net transfer from ONEOK.

All financial information presented after the separation represents the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of ONE Gas. Accordingly:

• Our Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2014 , consist of the results of ONE Gas for the eleven months
ended December 31, 2014 , and the results of ONE Gas Predecessor for the one month ended January 31, 2014. Our Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2013 , consist entirely of the results of ONE Gas Predecessor. Our net income for the period
prior to January 31, 2014, was recorded to owner’s net investment.

• Our Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 , consists of the results of ONE Gas for the eleven months ended December 31, 2014
, and the results of ONE Gas Predecessor for the one month ended January 31, 2014. Our Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2013
, consists entirely of the results of ONE Gas Predecessor.

• Our Statement of Equity for the year ended December 31, 2014 , consists of both the activity for ONE Gas Predecessor prior to January 31, 2014, and the
activity for ONE Gas completed in connection with, and subsequent to, the separation on January 31, 2014. Our Statement of Equity for the year ended
December 31, 2013 , consists entirely of the results of ONE Gas Predecessor.

The financial statements include the accounts of the natural gas distribution business as set forth in “Organization and Nature of Operations” above. All significant
balances and transactions between our divisions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of our financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions
with respect to values or conditions that cannot be known with certainty that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. These estimates and assumptions also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Items that may be estimated include, but are not limited to, the economic useful life of assets, fair value of assets and liabilities, provisions for
doubtful accounts receivable, unbilled revenues for natural gas delivered but for which meters have
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not been read, natural gas purchased but for which no invoice has been received, provision for income taxes, including any deferred tax valuation allowances, the
results of litigation and various other recorded or disclosed amounts.

We evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other methods we consider reasonable based on the particular circumstances.
Nevertheless, actual results may differ significantly from the estimates. Any effects on our financial position or results of operations from revisions to these
estimates are recorded in the period when the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

Fair Value Measurements -   We define fair value as the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or the transfer of a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. We use the market and income approaches to determine the fair value of our assets and liabilities
and consider the markets in which the transactions are executed. We measure the fair value of a group of financial assets and liabilities consistent with how a
market participant would price the net risk exposure at the measurement date.

Fair Value Hierarchy - At each balance sheet date, we utilize a fair value hierarchy to classify fair value amounts recognized or disclosed in our financial
statements based on the observability of inputs used to estimate such fair value. The levels of the hierarchy are described below:

• Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
• Level 2 - Significant observable pricing inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are, either directly or indirectly, observable as of the

reporting date. Essentially, this represents inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data; and
• Level 3 - May include one or more unobservable inputs that are significant in establishing a fair value estimate. These unobservable inputs are developed

based on the best information available and may include our own internal data.

We recognize transfers into and out of the levels as of the end of each reporting period.

Determining the appropriate classification of our fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy requires management’s judgment regarding the degree to
which market data is observable or corroborated by observable market data. We categorize derivatives for which fair value is determined using multiple inputs
within a single level, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. See Note 8 for additional information regarding
our fair value measurements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities of three
months or less.

Revenue Recognition  - For regulated deliveries of natural gas, we read meters and bill customers on a monthly cycle. We recognize revenues upon the delivery of
the natural gas commodity or services rendered to customers. The billing cycles for customers do not necessarily coincide with the accounting periods used for
financial reporting purposes. Revenues are accrued for natural gas delivered and services rendered to customers, but not yet billed. Accrued unbilled revenue is
based on a percentage estimate of amounts unbilled each month, which is dependent upon a number of factors, some of which require management’s judgment.
These factors include customer consumption patterns and the impact of weather on usage. The amounts of accrued unbilled natural gas sales revenues at December
31, 2015 and 2014 , were $109.6 million and $141.7 million , respectively.

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable represent valid claims against nonaffiliated customers for natural gas sold or services rendered, net of allowances for
doubtful accounts. We assess the creditworthiness of our customers. Those customers who do not meet minimum standards are required to provide security,
including deposits and other forms of collateral, when appropriate. With more than 2 million customers across three states, we are not exposed materially to a
concentration of credit risk. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of customers, historical trends,
consideration of the current credit environment and other information. In Oklahoma, Kansas and most jurisdictions we serve in Texas, we are able to recover
natural gas costs related to doubtful accounts through purchased-gas cost adjustment mechanisms. At December 31, 2015 and 2014 , our allowance for doubtful
accounts was $3.5 million and $4.0 million , respectively.

Inventories - Natural gas in storage is maintained on the basis of weighted-average cost. Natural gas inventories that are injected into storage are recorded in
inventory based on actual purchase costs, including storage and transportation costs. Natural gas inventories that are withdrawn from storage are accounted for in
our purchased-gas cost adjustment mechanisms at the weighted-average inventory cost.
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Materials and supplies inventories, which are included in other current assets on our Balance Sheets, are stated at the lower of weighted-average cost or net
realizable value. Our materials and supplies inventories totaled $33.3 million and $27.5 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively.

Derivatives and Risk Management Activities - We record all derivative instruments at fair value, with the exception of normal purchases and normal sales that
are expected to result in physical delivery. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and
qualifies as part of a hedging relationship and, if so, the reason for holding it, or if regulatory rulings require a different accounting treatment.

If certain conditions are met, we may elect to designate a derivative instrument as a hedge of exposure to changes in fair values or cash flows.

The table below summarizes the various ways in which we account for our derivative instruments and the impact on our financial statements:

  Recognition and Measurement

Accounting Treatment  Balance Sheet  Income Statement

Normal purchases and
normal sales

- Fair value not recorded - Change in fair value not recognized in earnings

Mark-to-market - Recorded at fair value - Change in fair value recognized in, and
recoverable through, the purchased-gas cost adjustment
mechanisms

We have not elected to designate any of our derivative instruments as hedges. Gains or losses associated with the fair value of commodity derivative instruments
entered into by us are included in, and recoverable through, the purchased-gas cost adjustment mechanisms.

See Note 8 for additional information regarding our fair value measurements and hedging activities using derivatives.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Our properties are stated at cost, which includes direct construction costs such as direct labor, materials, burden and AFUDC.
Generally, the cost of our property retired or sold, plus removal costs, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Gains and losses from sales or
retirement of an entire operating unit or system of our properties are recognized in income. Maintenance and repairs are charged directly to expense.

AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds used to finance construction activities. We capitalize interest costs during the construction or upgrade of qualifying
assets. Capitalized interest is recorded as a reduction to interest expense.

Our properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Generally, we apply composite depreciation rates to functional
groups of property having similar economic circumstances. We periodically conduct depreciation studies to assess the economic lives of our assets. These
depreciation studies are completed as a part of our rate proceedings, and the changes in economic lives, if applicable, are implemented prospectively when the new
rates are effective. Changes in the estimated economic lives of our property, plant and equipment could have a material effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment on our Balance Sheets includes construction work in process for capital projects that have not yet been placed in service and
therefore are not being depreciated. Assets are transferred out of construction work in process when they are substantially complete and ready for their intended
use.

See Note 10 for additional information regarding our property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets - We assess our goodwill for impairment at least annually as of July 1. Total goodwill was $158.0 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. Our goodwill impairment analysis performed in 2015, 2014 and 2013 , utilized a qualitative assessment and did not
result in any impairment indicators. Subsequent to July 1, 2015 , no event has occurred indicating that it is more likely that not that our fair value is less than our
carrying value of our net assets.

As part of our goodwill impairment test, we first assess qualitative factors (including macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors
and overall financial performance) to determine whether it is more likely than not that our
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fair value is less than our carrying amount. If further testing is necessary, we perform a two-step impairment test for goodwill. In the first step, an initial assessment
is made by comparing our fair value with our book value, including goodwill. If the fair value is less than the book value, an impairment is indicated, and we must
perform a second test to measure the amount of the impairment. In the second test, we calculate the implied fair value of the goodwill by deducting the fair value of
all tangible and intangible net assets from the fair value determined in step one of the assessment. If the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds the implied fair
value of the goodwill, we will record an impairment charge.

To estimate our fair value, we use two generally accepted valuation approaches, an income approach and a market approach, using assumptions consistent with a
market participant’s perspective. Under the income approach, we use anticipated cash flows over a period of years plus a terminal value and discount these
amounts to their present value using appropriate discount rates. Under the market approach, we apply acquisition multiples to forecasted cash flows. The
acquisition multiples used are consistent with historical asset transactions. The forecasted cash flows are based on average forecasted cash flows over a period of
years.

We assess our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment is indicated if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use and
eventual disposition of the asset. If an impairment is indicated, we record an impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value
of the long-lived asset. We determined that there were no asset impairments in 2015, 2014 or 2013 .

Regulation - We are subject to the rate regulation and accounting requirements of the OCC, KCC, RRC and various municipalities in Texas. We follow the
accounting and reporting guidance for regulated operations. During the ratemaking process, regulatory authorities set the framework for what we can charge
customers for our services and establish the manner that our costs are accounted for, including allowing us to defer recognition of certain costs and permitting
recovery of the amounts through rates over time, as opposed to expensing such costs as incurred. Examples include weather normalization, unrecovered purchased-
gas costs, pension and postemployment benefit costs and ad valorem taxes. This allows us to stabilize rates over time rather than passing such costs on to the
customer for immediate recovery. Actions by regulatory authorities could have an effect on the amount recovered from rate payers. Any difference in the amount
recoverable and the amount deferred is recorded as income or expense at the time of the regulatory action. A write-off of regulatory assets and costs not recovered
may be required if all or a portion of the regulated operations have rates that are no longer:

• established by independent regulators;
• designed to recover the specific entity’s costs of providing regulated services; and
• set at levels that will recover our costs when considering the demand and competition for our services.

See Note 9 for additional information regarding our regulatory assets and liabilities disclosures.

Pension and Other Postemployment Employee Benefits - We have defined benefit retirement plans covering eligible employees. We also sponsor welfare plans
that provide other postemployment medical and life insurance benefits to eligible employees who retire with at least five years of service. To calculate the costs
and liabilities related to our plans, we utilize an outside actuarial consultant, which uses statistical and other factors to anticipate future events. These factors
include assumptions about the discount rate, expected return on plan assets, rate of future compensation increases, age and mortality and employment periods. In
determining the projected benefit obligations and costs, assumptions can change from period to period and may result in material changes in the cost and liabilities
we recognize.

Prior to the separation, certain employees participated in pension and other postemployment employee benefit plans sponsored by ONEOK. We accounted for
these plans as multiemployer benefit plans. Accordingly, we did not record an asset or liability to recognize the funded status of these plans. We recognized a
liability only for any required contributions to those plans that were accrued and unpaid at the balance sheet date. The related pension and other postemployment
expenses were allocated to us based on plan participants who directly supported our operations. These pension and other postemployment benefit costs included
amounts associated with vested participants who are no longer employees.

Prior to the separation, certain benefit costs associated with employees who directly supported our operations were determined based on a specific employee basis.
We were also allocated benefit costs associated with employees of ONEOK that provided general corporate services. These amounts were charged to us by
ONEOK as described in Note 2. Prior to the separation, we were not the plan sponsor for the ONEOK pension and other postemployment benefit plans.
Accordingly, our balance sheets prior to the separation do not reflect any assets or liabilities related to these plans. See Note 12 for additional information
regarding pension and other postemployment employee benefit plans.
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Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are recorded for the difference between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities and
carryforward items, based on income tax laws and rates existing at the time the temporary differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred taxes of a
change in tax rates is deferred and amortized for operations regulated by the OCC, KCC, RRC and various municipalities in Texas, if, as a result of an action by a
regulator, it is probable that the effect of the change in tax rates will be recovered from or returned to customers through future rates. We continue to amortize
previously deferred investment tax credits for ratemaking purposes over the periods prescribed by our regulators.

A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recognized when it is more likely than not that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be
realized. To assess that likelihood, we use estimates and judgment regarding our future taxable income, as well as the jurisdiction in which such taxable income is
generated, to determine whether a valuation allowance is required. Such evidence can include our current financial position, our results of operations, both actual
and forecasted, the reversal of deferred tax liabilities, as well as the current and forecasted business economics of our industry. We had no valuation allowance at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 .

We utilize a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position that is
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We reflect penalties and interest as part of income tax expense as they become applicable for tax provisions that do
not meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold and measurement attribute. There were no material uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2015 and 2014
.

See Note 13 for additional information regarding income taxes.

Asset Retirement Obligations - Asset retirement obligations represent legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the asset. Certain long-lived assets that comprise our natural gas distribution systems, primarily our
pipeline assets, are subject to agreements or regulations that give rise to an asset retirement obligation for removal or other disposition costs associated with retiring
the assets in place upon the discontinued use of the natural gas distribution system. We recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in
the period when it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of the fair value can be made. We are not able to estimate reasonably the fair value of the asset retirement
obligations for portions of our assets because the settlement dates are indeterminable given our expected continued use of the assets with proper maintenance. We
expect our natural gas distribution systems will continue in operation as long as natural gas supply and demand for natural gas distribution service exists. Based on
the widespread use of natural gas for heating and cooking activities by residential and commercial customers in our service areas, management expects supply and
demand to exist for the foreseeable future.

In accordance with long-standing regulatory treatment, we collect through rates the estimated costs of removal on certain regulated properties through depreciation
expense, with a corresponding credit to accumulated depreciation and amortization. These removal costs collected through our rates include costs attributable to
legal and nonlegal removal obligations; however, the amounts collected that are in excess of these nonlegal asset-removal costs incurred are accounted for as a
regulatory liability for financial reporting purposes. Historically, with the exception of the regulatory authority in Kansas, the regulatory authorities that have
jurisdiction over our regulated operations have not required us to quantify or disclose this amount; rather, these costs are addressed prospectively in depreciation
rates and are set in each general rate order. We have made an estimate of our regulatory liability using current rates since the last general rate order in each of our
jurisdictions; however, for financial reporting purposes, significant uncertainty exists regarding the future disposition of this regulatory liability, pending, among
other issues, clarification of regulatory intent. We continue to monitor the regulatory requirements, and the liability may be adjusted as more information is
obtained. We record the estimated asset removal obligation in noncurrent liabilities in other deferred credits on our Balance Sheets. To the extent this estimated
liability is adjusted, such amounts will be reclassified between accumulated depreciation and amortization and other deferred credits and therefore will not have an
impact on earnings.

Contingencies - Our accounting for contingencies covers a variety of business activities, including contingencies for legal and environmental exposures. We
accrue these contingencies when our assessments indicate that it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset will not be recovered and an amount can
be estimated reasonably. We expense legal fees as incurred and base our legal liability estimates on currently available facts and our estimates of the ultimate
outcome or resolution. Accruals for estimated losses from environmental remediation obligations generally are recognized no later than the completion of a
remediation feasibility study. Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from other parties are recorded as assets when their receipt is deemed probable.
Actual results may differ from our estimates resulting in an impact, positive or negative, on earnings. See Note 14 for additional information regarding
contingencies.

Share-Based Payments - We expense the fair value of share-based payments net of estimated forfeitures. We estimate forfeiture rates based on historical
forfeitures under our share-based payment plans.
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Prior to the separation, ONEOK charged us for compensation expense related to stock-based compensation awards granted to our employees that directly
supported our operations. Share-based compensation was also a component of allocated amounts charged to us by ONEOK for general and administrative
personnel providing services on our behalf.

Earnings per share - Basic EPS is based on net income and is calculated based upon the daily weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
periods presented. Also, this calculation includes fully vested stock awards that have not yet been issued as common stock. Diluted EPS includes the above, plus
unvested stock awards granted under our compensation plans, but only to the extent these instruments dilute earnings per share.

Segments - We operate in one reportable business segment: regulated public utilities that deliver natural gas to residential, commercial, industrial and
transportation customers. We define reportable business segments as components of an organization for which discrete financial information is available and
operating results are evaluated on a regular basis by the chief operating decision maker (CODM) in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Our CODM
is our Chief Executive Officer (CEO). Characteristics of our organization that were relied upon in making this determination include the similar nature of services
we provide, the functional alignment of our organizational structure, and the reports that are regularly reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of assessing
performance and allocating resources. Our management is functionally aligned and centralized, with performance evaluated based upon results of the entire
distribution business. Capital allocation decisions are driven by asset integrity management and operating efficiency, not geographic location.

We evaluate performance based principally on operating income. Affiliate sales are recorded on the same basis as sales to unaffiliated customers and are discussed
in further detail in Note 2. Net margin is comprised of total revenues less cost of natural gas. Cost of natural gas includes commodity purchases, fuel, storage and
transportation costs and does not include an allocation of general operating costs or depreciation and amortization.

In 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , we had no single external customer from which we received 10 percent or more of our gross revenues.

Treasury Stock - We record treasury stock purchases at cost, which includes incremental direct transaction costs. Amounts are recorded as reductions in equity in
our Balance Sheets. We record the reissuance of treasury stock at our weighted average cost of treasury shares recorded in equity in our Balance Sheets.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Update  - In October 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,” to
simplify reporting of deferred taxes. The new guidance requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance, be classified as
noncurrent on the balance sheet. This guidance is required to be adopted for our interim and annual reports for periods beginning after December 15, 2016, but
early adoption is permitted. We have adopted this guidance early to simplify our financial reporting process, have applied it prospectively for the period beginning
October 1, 2015, and it did not have a material impact on our financial statements. Prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-15, “Interest-Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30),” which specifically addresses the presentation and subsequent
measurement of debt issuance costs associated with line of credit arrangements. We do not expect this issued guidance, which will be adopted concurrently with
ASU 2015-03, to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Interest-Imputation of Interest,” which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be
presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. We do not expect this issued guidance, which is required to be
adopted for our interim and annual reports for periods beginning after December 15, 2015, to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-05, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-Use Software,” which helps entities evaluate the accounting for fees paid
by a customer in a cloud computing arrangement. We do not expect this issued guidance, which is required to be adopted for our interim and annual reports for
periods beginning after December 15, 2015, to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which clarifies and converges the revenue recognition principles under
GAAP and IFRS. In July 2015, FASB delayed the effective date of ASU 2014-09 for one year. We are evaluating the impact of this recently issued guidance,
which is required to be adopted for our interim and annual reports beginning with the first quarter 2018.

59

Attachment B-5



2. SEPARATION & RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Distribution - On January 8, 2014, ONEOK’s board of directors approved the distribution of our common stock to holders of ONEOK common stock.

In order for ONEOK to effect the distribution, we requested, and the SEC declared effective, our Registration Statement on Form 10 on January 10, 2014. ONEOK
transferred all of the assets and liabilities primarily related to its natural gas distribution business to us. Assets and liabilities included accounts receivable and
payable, natural gas in storage, regulatory assets and liabilities, pipeline and other natural gas distribution facilities, customer deposits, employee-related assets and
liabilities, including amounts attributable to pension and other postemployment benefits, tax-related assets and liabilities and other assets and liabilities primarily
associated with providing natural gas distribution service in Oklahoma, Kansas and Texas. Cash and certain corporate assets, such as office space in the corporate
headquarters and certain IT hardware and software, were not transferred to us; however, a Transition Services Agreement between ONEOK and us provided access
to such corporate assets as necessary to operate our business for a period of time to enable us to obtain the applicable corporate assets.

Immediately prior to the contribution of the natural gas distribution business to us, ONEOK contributed to the capital of the natural gas distribution business all of
the amounts outstanding on the natural gas distribution business’ short-term note payable to and long-term line of credit with ONEOK. We received approximately
$1.19 billion of cash from a private placement of senior notes, which were later exchanged for registered notes, then used a portion of those proceeds to fund a cash
payment of approximately $1.13 billion to ONEOK. Effective January 31, 2014, the number of our authorized shares increased to 250 million shares of common
stock and 50 million of preferred stock. On January 31, 2014, ONEOK distributed one share of our common stock for every four shares of ONEOK common stock
held by ONEOK shareholders of record as of the close of business on January 21, 2014, the record date of the distribution. At the close of business on January 31,
2014, we became an independent, publicly traded company as a result of the distribution.

Reorganization Adjustments - We entered into the Separation and Distribution Agreement and several other agreements with ONEOK to effect the separation
and provide a framework for our relationships with ONEOK after the distribution. These agreements govern the relationship between ONEOK and us subsequent
to the completion of the distribution, and provide for the allocation among ONEOK and us of the assets, liabilities and obligations (including employee benefits
and tax-related assets and liabilities) relating to the natural gas distribution business attributable to periods prior to, at and after the distribution. In accordance with
the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, ONEOK contributed the assets and liabilities of its natural gas distribution business to us. The noncash
contributions below represent ONEOK assets and liabilities attributable to pension and other postemployment employee benefits, general corporate assets and
liabilities and related deferred taxes not included previously in the ONE Gas Predecessor balance sheet, but the costs for which were included in ONE Gas
Predecessor’s results of operations. The table below also includes the contribution of the short-term note payable to and long-term line of credit with ONEOK
previously included in ONE Gas Predecessor balance sheets. The assets and liabilities below were recorded at historical cost as the reorganization was among
entities under common control. Net transfers from ONEOK included:

(Thousands
of
dollars)   

Property, plant and equipment, net  $ 21,459

Regulatory assets, pension and other postemployment benefits  331,148

Other assets  80,700

Long-term line of credit with ONEOK  1,027,631

Short-term note payable to ONEOK  397,857

Pension and other postemployment benefits - liabilities  (123,800)

Other liabilities  (34,404)

Deferred taxes  (86,112)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (3,393)

Net contribution of assets (liabilities)  $ 1,611,086

Less: Cash paid to ONEOK  1,130,000

  Net transfers from ONEOK  $ 481,086

Affiliate Transactions - Prior to our separation, we had certain transactions with ONEOK and its subsidiaries. We purchased a portion of our natural gas supply
and natural gas transportation and storage services from ONEOK and its affiliates. These
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contracts were awarded through a competitive-bidding process, and the costs were recoverable through our purchased-gas cost adjustment mechanisms.

Prior to our separation, the Statements of Income included expense allocations for certain corporate functions historically performed by ONEOK and allocated to
its natural gas distribution business, including allocations of general corporate expenses related to executive oversight, accounting, treasury, tax, legal, information
technology and facilities maintenance. Where costs were incurred specifically on our behalf, the costs were billed directly to us by ONEOK. In other situations, the
costs were allocated to us through a variety of methods, depending upon the nature of the expenses. For example, a service that applied equally to all employees of
ONEOK was allocated based upon the number of employees in each ONEOK affiliate. An expense benefiting us but having no direct basis for allocation was
allocated by the modified Distrigas method, a method using a combination of ratios that include gross plant and investment, operating income and payroll expense.
It is not practicable to determine what these general overhead costs would be on a stand-alone basis. These allocations included the following costs:

Corporate Services - These represent costs for certain employees of ONEOK who provided general and administrative services on our behalf. These charges were
either directly identifiable or allocated based upon usage factors for our operations. In addition, we received other allocated costs for our share of general corporate
expenses of ONEOK, which were determined based on our relative use of the service or, if there was no direct basis for allocation, were allocated by the modified
Distrigas method. All of these costs are reflected in operations and maintenance and depreciation expense in the Statements of Income.

Benefit Plans and Incentives - These represent benefit costs and other incentives, including group health and welfare benefits, pension plans, other postemployment
benefit plans and employee stock-based compensation plans. Costs associated with incentive and stock-based compensation plans were determined on a specific
identification basis for certain employees who directly supported our operations. All other employee benefit costs historically were allocated using a percentage
factor derived from a ratio of benefit costs to salary costs for ONEOK’s employees. These expenses are included in operations and maintenance expenses in the
Statements of Income.

Total compensation cost, which included costs for both employees who directly supported our operations and allocations for corporate services, charged to us by
ONEOK related to share-based payment plans was $15.5 million during 2013. Compensation costs charged to us by ONEOK in 2014 were not material. See Note
11 for additional information regarding share-based payments. Total cost charged to us by ONEOK related to pension and other postemployment health and
welfare plans was $52.1 million during 2013, which is net of amounts deferred through regulatory mechanisms of $1.8 million during 2013. Cost related to pension
and other postemployment health and welfare plans which was charged to us by ONEOK in 2014 was not material. See Note 12 for additional information
regarding employee benefit plans.

Interest Expense - ONEOK utilized a centralized approach to cash management and the financing of its businesses. Cash receipts and cash expenditures for costs
and expenses from our operations were transferred to or from ONEOK on a regular basis and recorded as increases or decreases in the balance due in short-term
note payable to ONEOK under an unsecured promissory note we had in place with ONEOK. The amounts outstanding under the long-term line of credit with
ONEOK and the short-term note payable to ONEOK accrued interest based on ONEOK’s weighted-average cost of long-term and short-term debt, respectively.

The weighted average interest rate on amounts outstanding under the long-term line of credit with ONEOK was 5.79 percent in 2013. The interest rate on the
revolver was reset each year based on ONEOK’s outstanding debt plus an adjustment of 50 basis points for ONEOK’s cost to administer the program.

The weighted-average interest rate for the short-term notes payable to ONEOK was 0.92 percent for 2013. Principal under these notes payable beared interest
based on ONEOK’s weighted-average cost of short-term debt, plus a utilization fee of 50 basis points, calculated monthly.
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The following table shows ONEOK’s and its subsidiaries’ transactions with us included in the Statements of Income for the periods indicated:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2013

  (Thousands
of
dollars)

Cost of natural gas  $ 226,582

Operations and maintenance   

Direct employee labor and benefit costs  177,526

Allocated employee labor and benefit costs  29,955

Charges for general and administrative services  36,078

Depreciation and amortization  6,940

Other (income)/expense, net  (5,073)

Interest expense  60,930

Total  $ 532,938

Employee labor and benefit costs capitalized totaled $49.3 million for 2013. In addition, we recorded regulated utility revenue from ONEOK and its subsidiaries.
This amount was immaterial for the period presented.

The remaining related party transactions prior to the separation were not material in 2014.

3. CREDIT FACILITY AND SHORT-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

ONE Gas Credit Agreement - The ONE Gas Credit Agreement contains certain financial, operational and legal covenants. Among other things, these covenants
include maintaining ONE Gas’ total debt-to-capital ratio of no more than 70 percent at the end of any calendar quarter. The ONE Gas Credit Agreement also
contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including covenants relating to liens, indebtedness of subsidiaries, investments, changes in the nature of
business, fundamental changes, transactions with affiliates, burdensome agreements, and use of proceeds. In the event of a breach of certain covenants by ONE
Gas, amounts outstanding under the ONE Gas Credit Agreement may become due and payable immediately. At December 31, 2015 , our total debt-to-capital ratio
was 40 percent and we were in compliance with all covenants under the ONE Gas Credit Agreement.

The ONE Gas Credit Agreement includes a $50 million sublimit for the issuance of standby letters of credit and also features an option to request an increase in the
size of the facility to an aggregate of $1.2 billion from $700 million by either commitments from new lenders or increased commitments from existing lenders.
Borrowings made under the facility are available for general corporate purposes. The ONE Gas Credit Agreement contains provisions for an applicable margin rate
and an annual facility fee, both of which adjust with changes in our credit rating. Based on our current credit ratings, borrowings, if any, will accrue interest at
LIBOR plus 79.5 basis points, and the annual facility fee is 8 basis points.

We have a commercial paper program under which we may issue unsecured commercial paper up to a maximum amount of $700 million to fund short-term
borrowing needs. The maturities of the commercial paper notes may vary but may not exceed 270 days from the date of issue. The commercial paper notes are sold
generally at par less a discount representing an interest factor.

The ONE Gas Credit Agreement is available to repay the commercial paper notes, if necessary. Amounts outstanding under the commercial paper program reduce
the borrowing capacity under the ONE Gas Credit Agreement. At December 31, 2015, we had $12.5 million of commercial paper and $1.0 million in letters of
credit issued under the ONE Gas Credit Agreement, with no borrowings and $686.5 million of remaining credit available under the ONE Gas Credit Agreement.
The weighted-average interest rate on our commercial paper was 0.70 percent and 0.32 percent at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

4. LONG-TERM DEBT

Senior notes issuance - In January 2014, we issued senior notes, consisting of $300 million of 2.07 percent senior notes due 2019 , $300 million of 3.61 percent
senior notes due 2024 and $600 million of 4.658 percent senior notes due 2044 (collectively, our “Senior Notes”). The net proceeds were approximately $1.19
billion and were used to fund a one-time cash
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payment to ONEOK of approximately $1.13 billion as part of the separation. The remaining portion of the net proceeds was retained in order to provide sufficient
financial flexibility and to support working capital requirements and capital expenditures.

The indenture governing our Senior Notes includes an event of default upon the acceleration of other indebtedness of $100 million or more. Such events of default
would entitle the trustee or the holders of 25 percent in the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Senior Notes to declare those senior notes immediately
due and payable in full.

We may redeem our Senior Notes at par, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, starting one month, three months, and six months, respectively,
before their maturity dates. Prior to these dates, we may redeem these Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount, plus
accrued and unpaid interest and a make-whole premium. The redemption price will never be less than 100 percent of the principal amount of the respective note
plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. Our Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations, ranking equally in right of payment with all of our
existing and future unsecured senior indebtedness.

5. EQUITY

Preferred Stock - At December 31, 2015, we have 50 million , $0.01 par value, authorized shares of preferred stock available. We have not issued or established
any classes or series of shares of preferred stock.

Common Stock - At December 31, 2015 , we had approximately 197.4 million shares of authorized common stock available for issuance.

Treasury Shares - We purchase treasury shares to be used to offset shares issued under our employee and non-employee director equity compensation and
employee stock purchase plans. Our Board of Directors established an annual limit of $20 million of treasury stock purchases, exclusive of funds received through
the dividend reinvestment and employee stock purchase plans. Stock purchases may be made in the open market or in private transactions at times, and in amounts
that we deem appropriate. There is no guarantee as to the exact number of shares that we purchase, and we can terminate or limit the program at any time. We hold
the purchased shares as treasury shares and account for them using the cost method.

Dividends Declared - In January 2016, a dividend of $0.35 per share ( $1.40 per share on an annualized basis) was declared for shareholders of record on February
26, 2016, payable March 11, 2016.
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6. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following table sets forth the balance in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the period indicated:

  
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

  (Thousands
of
dollars)

January 1, 2014  $ —

Transfers in upon separation  (3,393)

Pension and other postemployment benefit plans obligations   
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassification, net of tax of $1,442  (2,096)

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of $(198)  315

Other comprehensive income (loss)  (1,781)

December 31, 2014  (5,174)

Pension and other postemployment benefit plans obligations   
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassification, net of tax of $(130)  209

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of $(353)  564

Other comprehensive income (loss)  773

December 31, 2015  $ (4,401)

The following table sets forth the effect of reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) on our Statements of Income for the period
indicated:

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income  Year Ended December 31, Affected Line Item in the

(Loss) Components  2015  2014 Statements of Income

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)  
Pension and other postemployment benefit plan obligations (a)      

Amortization of net loss

 $ 47,494  $ 34,169  

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost  (1,962)  (1,211)  
  45,532  32,958  
Regulatory adjustments (b)  (44,615)  (32,445)  
  917  513 Income before income taxes

  (353)  (198) Income tax expense

Total reclassifications for the period  $ 564  $ 315 Net income

(a) These components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost. See Note 12 for additional information
regarding our net periodic benefit cost.
(b) Regulatory adjustments represent pension and other postemployment benefit costs expected to be recovered through rates and are deferred as part of our regulatory assets.
See Note 9 for additional information regarding our regulatory assets and liabilities.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables set forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS from continuing operations for the periods indicated:

 Year Ended December 31, 2015

 Income  Shares  
Per Share
Amount

 ( Thousands,
except
per
share
amounts
)

Basic EPS Calculation      

Net income available for common stock $ 119,030  52,578  $ 2.26

Diluted EPS Calculation      

Effect of dilutive securities —  676   

Net income available for common stock and common stock equivalents $ 119,030  53,254  $ 2.24
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 Year Ended December 31, 2014

 Income  Shares  
Per Share
Amount

 ( Thousands,
except
per
share
amounts
)

Basic EPS Calculation      

Net income available for common stock $ 109,790  52,364  $ 2.10

Diluted EPS Calculation      

Effect of dilutive securities —  582   

Net income available for common stock and common stock equivalents $ 109,790  52,946  $ 2.07

 Year Ended December 31, 2013

 Income  Shares  
Per Share
Amount

 ( Thousands,
except
per
share
amounts
)

Basic EPS Calculation      

Net income available for common stock $ 99,195  52,319  $ 1.90

Diluted EPS Calculation      

Effect of dilutive securities —  —   

Net income available for common stock and common stock equivalents $ 99,195  52,319  $ 1.90

On January 31, 2014,  51,941,236  shares of our common stock were distributed to ONEOK shareholders in conjunction with the separation. For comparative
purposes, and to provide a more meaningful calculation of weighted-average shares outstanding, we have assumed this amount and any shares associated with fully
vested stock awards that have not been issued to be outstanding as of the beginning of each period prior to the separation presented in the calculation of weighted-
average shares.

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Derivative Instruments -   At December 31, 2015 , we held purchased natural gas call options for the heating season ending March 2016, with total notional
amounts of 17.0 Bcf, for which we paid premiums of $5.8 million , and had a fair value of $0.4 million . At December 31, 2014 , we held purchased natural gas
call options for the heating season ended March 2015, with total notional amounts of 16.0 Bcf, for which we paid premiums of $6.4 million , and had a fair value
of $0.1 million . The premiums paid and any cash settlements received are recorded as part of our unrecovered purchased-gas costs in current regulatory assets as
these contracts are included in, and recoverable through, the purchased-gas cost adjustment mechanisms. Additionally, changes in fair value associated with these
contracts are deferred as part of our unrecovered purchased-gas costs in our Balance Sheets. Our natural gas call options are classified as Level 1 as fair value
amounts are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets including NYMEX-settled prices. There were no transfers between levels for the periods
presented.

Other Financial Instruments -   The approximate fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable is equal to book value, due to
the short-term nature of these items. Our cash and cash equivalents are comprised of bank and money market accounts, and are classified as Level 1.

Short-term notes payable and commercial paper are due upon demand and, therefore, the carrying amounts approximate fair value and are classified as Level 1.
The book value of our long-term debt, including current maturities, was  $1.2 billion  at both December 31, 2015 and 2014 . The estimated fair value of our long-
term debt, including current maturities, was  $1.2 billion  and  $1.3 billion  at December 31, 2015 and 2014 , respectively. The estimated fair value of our Senior
Notes was determined using quoted market prices, and are considered Level 2.
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9. REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below presents a summary of regulatory assets, net of amortization, and liabilities for the periods indicated:

    December 31, 2015

  
Remaining Recovery

Period  Current  Noncurrent  Total

    ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Under-recovered purchased-gas costs  1 year  $ 13,336  $ —  $ 13,336

Pension and other postemployment benefit costs  See Note 12  15,670  425,175  440,845

Weather normalization  1 year  2,198  —  2,198

Reacquired debt costs  12 years  812  8,919  9,731

Other  1 to 23 years  909  1,769  2,678

Total regulatory assets, net of amortization    32,925  435,863  468,788

Accumulated removal costs (a)  up to 50 years  —  (9,032)  (9,032)

Over-recovered purchased-gas costs  1 year  (22,884)  —  (22,884)

Ad valorem tax  1 year  (1,731)  —  (1,731)

Total regulatory liabilities    (24,615)  (9,032)  (33,647)

Net regulatory assets and liabilities    $ 8,310  $ 426,831  $ 435,141

(a) Included in other deferred credits in our Balance Sheets.

    December 31, 2014

  
Remaining Recovery

Period  Current  Noncurrent  Total

    ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Under-recovered purchased-gas costs  1 year  $ 28,712  $ —  $ 28,712

Pension and other postemployment benefit costs  See Note 12  18,108  466,684  484,792

Reacquired debt costs  13 years  812  9,730  10,542

Other  1 to 24 years  2,561  2,309  4,870

Total regulatory assets, net of amortization    50,193  478,723  528,916

Accumulated removal costs (a)  up to 50 years  —  (15,451)  (15,451)

Weather normalization  1 year  (16,516)  —  (16,516)

Over-recovered purchased-gas costs  1 year  (13,055)  —  (13,055)

Ad valorem tax  1 year  (2,896)  —  (2,896)

Total regulatory liabilities    (32,467)  (15,451)  (47,918)

Net regulatory assets and liabilities    $ 17,726  $ 463,272  $ 480,998

(a) Included in other deferred credits in our Balance Sheets.

Regulatory assets on our Balance Sheets, as authorized by the various regulatory authorities, are probable of recovery. Base rates are designed to provide a
recovery of cost during the period rates are in effect but do not generally provide for a return on investment for amounts we have deferred as regulatory assets. All
of our regulatory assets recoverable through base rates are subject to review by the respective regulatory authorities during future rate proceedings. We are not
aware of any evidence that these costs will not be recoverable through either rate riders or base rates, and we believe that we will be able to recover such costs,
consistent with our historical recoveries.

Purchased-gas costs represent the natural gas costs that have been over- or under-recovered from customers through the purchased-gas cost adjustment
mechanisms, and includes natural gas utilized in our operations and premiums paid and any cash settlements received from our purchased natural gas call options.

We amortize reacquired debt costs in accordance with the accounting guidelines prescribed by the OCC and KCC.

In December 2013, the KCC approved a settlement agreement between ONEOK, the staff of the KCC, and the Citizens’ Utility Ratepayer Board that authorized
the transfer of ONEOK’s Kansas Gas Service natural gas distribution assets to us. As a result, Kansas Gas Service expensed certain transition costs associated with
ONEOK’s acquisition of Kansas Gas Service in 1997 that previously had been recorded as a regulatory asset and amortized and recovered in rates over a 40-year
period. As such, we recorded a noncash charge to income of approximately $10.2 million before taxes during 2013 in depreciation and amortization.
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Weather normalization represents revenue over- or under-recovered through the weather normalization adjustment rider in Kansas. This amount is deferred as a
regulatory asset or liability for a 12-month period. Kansas Gas Service then applies an adjustment to the customers’ bills for 12 months to refund the over-collected
revenue or bill the under-collected revenue.

Ad valorem tax represents an increase or decrease in Kansas Gas Service’s taxes above or below the amount approved in a rate case. This amount is deferred as a
regulatory asset or liability for a 12-month period. Kansas Gas Service then applies an adjustment to the customers’ bills for 12 months to refund the over-collected
revenue or bill the under-collected revenue.

Recovery through rates resulted in amortization of regulatory assets of approximately $1.6 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014 , respectively. Amortization of regulatory assets of approximately $32.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 , included amounts recovered through
rates totaling $21.8 million and $10.2 million related to certain transition costs as described above.

We collect, through our rates, the estimated costs of removal on certain regulated properties through depreciation expense, with a corresponding credit to
accumulated depreciation and amortization. These removal costs are nonlegal obligations; however, the amounts collected that are in excess of these nonlegal
asset-removal costs incurred are accounted for as a regulatory liability. We have made an estimate of our regulatory liability using current rates since the last
general rate order in each of our jurisdictions. We record the estimated nonlegal asset removal obligation in noncurrent liabilities in other deferred credits on our
Balance Sheets.

In January 2016, as a result of our rate case in Oklahoma, we recorded a regulatory asset of $2.4 million to recover certain information technology costs incurred as
a result of our separation from ONEOK in 2014, which will be recovered over four years.

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table sets forth our property, plant and equipment by property type, for the periods indicated:

  December 31,  December 31,

  2015  2014

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Natural gas distribution pipelines and related equipment  $ 4,114,090  $ 3,909,881

Natural gas transmission pipelines and related equipment  462,654  450,810

General plant and other  498,906  418,157

Construction work in process  57,032  71,353

Property, plant and equipment  5,132,682  4,850,201

Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (1,620,771)  (1,556,481)

Net property, plant and equipment  $ 3,511,911  $ 3,293,720

We compute depreciation expense for distribution operations by applying composite, straight-line rates approved by various regulatory authorities. The average
depreciation rates for our property are set forth in the following table for the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31,

2015  2014  2013

2.0% - 3.0%  2.0% - 3.0%  2.0% - 3.0%

We recorded capitalized interest of $2.6 million , $2.5 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 , respectively. We incurred
liabilities for construction work in process that had not been paid at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 of $15.0 million , $7.0 million and $10.5 million ,
respectively. Such amounts are not included in capital expenditures on the Statements of Cash Flows.

Amounts recorded for regulatory accounting purposes that were not reflected in our financial statements were not material for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014.
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11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The ONE Gas Equity Compensation Plan (ECP or ONE Gas Plan) provides for the granting of stock-based compensation, including incentive stock options,
nonstatutory stock options, stock bonus awards, restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit awards, performance stock awards and performance unit awards to
eligible employees and the granting of stock awards to nonemployee directors. We have reserved 2.8 million shares of common stock for issuance under the ECP.
At December 31, 2015 , we had approximately 1.4 million shares available for issuance under the ECP, which reflect shares issued and estimated shares expected
to be issued upon vesting of outstanding awards granted under the plan, less forfeitures. The plan allows for the deferral of awards granted in stock or cash, in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code section 409A requirements.

Prior to our separation, certain employees assigned to us in the separation participated in ONEOK’s share-based awards plans (ONEOK Plans). The ONEOK Plans
provided for ONEOK common stock based awards to both employees and ONEOK’s nonemployee directors. The plans permitted the granting of various types of
awards including, but not limited to, performance stock units and restricted stock units. Awards could be granted for no consideration other than prior and future
services or based on certain financial performance targets. In connection with the separation, awards granted by ONEOK in 2012 and 2013 were cancelled and
replaced with awards of ONE Gas shares. The number of restricted stock units held by a ONE Gas participant was multiplied by a ratio of 2.04 which was
determined by the ONEOK volume-weighted average share price of $68.22 on January 31, 2014, and the ONE Gas volume-weighted average share price of $33.50
on February 3, 2014, rounded to the nearest whole share.

The same ratio of 2.04 was used to convert the outstanding performance stock units awarded by ONEOK prior to the separation into awards for ONE Gas shares. A
pre-distribution payout factor was applied to each grant based on ONEOK’s total shareholder return performance compared with its peer group for the number of
days lapsed from the date of the grant to January 31, 2014, and these awards were frozen or “banked” and are not subject to an additional payout factor. The
remaining units from each grant will continue to be at-risk based on our performance and the relative total shareholder return of our peer group.

No incremental cost was recorded in our financial statements upon cancellation and replacement of the 2012 and 2013 restricted stock units and performance stock
units because the previous awards were cancelled and replaced pursuant to anti-dilution provisions of the ONEOK Plans and the fair value of the awards
immediately following the cancellation and replacement was not higher than the fair value of the awards immediately before the cancellation and replacement.

We were charged by ONEOK for share-based compensation expense related to employees that directly supported our operations. ONEOK also charged us for the
allocated costs of certain employees of ONEOK (including stock-based compensation) who provided general and administrative services on our behalf.
Information included in this note is limited to share-based compensation associated with employees in 2014, and employees that directly supported our operations
as part of ONEOK prior to our separation. See Note 2 for total costs charged to us by ONEOK.

Compensation cost expensed for our share-based payment plans was $5.7 million , net of tax benefits of $3.5 million , for 2015, and $7.0 million , net of tax
benefits of $4.4 million for 2014. Compensation cost charged to us for employees directly supporting our operations by ONEOK for 2013 totaled $9.7 million ,
respectively, which is net of $6.1 million of tax benefits.

Restricted Stock Unit Awards - We have granted restricted stock unit awards to key employees that vest over a service period of generally three years and entitle
the grantee to receive shares of our common stock. The awards granted that replaced awards granted by ONEOK in 2012 vested, and 2013 will vest, consistent
with their original vesting dates in 2015 and 2016, respectively. Restricted stock unit awards granted in 2015 and 2014 and that replaced awards granted by
ONEOK in 2013 accrue dividend equivalents in the form of additional restricted stock units prior to vesting. Restricted stock unit awards are measured at fair value
as if they were vested and issued on the grant date, reduced by expected dividend payments for awards that do not accrue dividends and adjusted for estimated
forfeitures. Compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award. A forfeiture rate of 3 percent per year based on
historical forfeitures under our share-based payment plans is used.

Performance Stock Unit Awards - We have granted performance stock unit awards to key employees. The shares of common stock underlying the performance
stock units vest at the expiration of a service period of generally three years if certain performance criteria are met by us as determined by the Executive
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The awards granted that replaced awards granted by ONEOK in 2012 vested, and 2013 will vest, consistent
with their original vesting dates in 2015 and 2016, respectively, if certain performance criteria are met by us for the at-risk portion of the awards as described
above. Upon vesting, a holder of performance stock units is entitled to receive a number of shares of common
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stock equal to a percentage (0 percent to 200 percent) of the performance stock units granted, based on our total shareholder return over the vesting period,
compared with the total shareholder return of a peer group of other utilities over the same period.

If paid, the outstanding performance stock unit awards entitle the grantee to receive shares of our common stock. The outstanding performance stock unit awards
are equity awards with a market-based condition, which results in the compensation expense for these awards being recognized on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period, provided that the requisite service period is fulfilled, regardless of when, if ever, the market condition is satisfied. The new performance
stock unit awards granted in 2015 and 2014 and the grants that replaced awards granted by ONEOK in 2013 accrue dividend equivalents in the form of additional
performance stock units prior to vesting. The fair value of these performance stock units was estimated on the grant date based on a Monte Carlo model. The
compensation expense on these awards will only be adjusted for changes in forfeitures. A forfeiture rate of 3 percent per year based on historical forfeitures under
our and, prior to the separation, ONEOK’s share-based payment plans was used.

Restricted Stock Unit Award Activity

As of December 31, 2015 , there was $3.2 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the nonvested restricted stock unit awards, which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years. The following tables set forth activity and various statistics for restricted stock unit awards
outstanding under the respective plans for the period indicated:

  
Number of

Shares  
Weighted-

Average Price

Nonvested December 31, 2014  325,730  $ 23.47

Granted  75,880  $ 41.40

Vested  (162,280)  $ 18.32

Forfeited  (8,072)  $ 34.42

Nonvested December 31, 2015  231,258  $ 32.59

  2015  2014  2013

Weighted-average grant date fair value (per share)  $ 41.40  $ 33.19  $ 47.36

Fair value of shares granted (thousands of dollars)  $ 3,141  $ 3,149  $ 1,323

Performance Stock Unit Award Activity

As of December 31, 2015 , there was $4.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the nonvested performance stock unit awards, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years. The following tables set forth activity and various statistics related to our performance
stock unit awards and the assumptions used by us, and ONEOK prior to 2014, in the valuations of the 2015, 2014 and 2013 grants at the grant date:

  
Number of

Units  
Weighted-

Average Price

Nonvested December 31, 2014  847,951  $ 17.62

Granted  100,860  $ 44.48

Vested  (502,474)  $ 14.33

Forfeited  (7,087)  $ 30.22

Nonvested December 31, 2015  439,250  $ 27.35

  2015  2014  2013  

Volatility  15.90% (a) 18.40% (a) 22.27% (b)

Dividend yield  2.90%  3.37%  3.04%  
Risk-free interest rate  1.10%  0.67%  0.42%  

(a) - Volatility based on historical volatility over three years using daily stock price observations of our peer utilities.  
(b) - Volatility based on historical volatility over three years using daily ONEOK stock price observations.  
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  2015  2014  2013

Weighted-average grant date fair value (per share)  $ 44.48  $ 35.98  $ 52.30

Fair value of shares granted (thousands of dollars)  $ 4,486  $ 4,462  $ 2,926

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have reserved a total of 0.7 million  shares of common stock for issuance under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP).  Subject to certain exclusions,
all employees who work at least 20 hours per week are eligible to participate in the ESPP.  Employees can choose to have up to 10 percent of their annual base pay
withheld to purchase our common stock, subject to terms and limitations of the plan. The purchase price of the stock is 85 percent of the lower of the average
market price of our common stock on the grant date or exercise date. Approximately 40 percent and 36 percent of employees participated in the plan in 2015 and
2014, respectively, and purchased 51,092 shares at $36.15 in 2015 and 51,418 shares at $32.29 in 2014. Compensation expense, before taxes, was $1.3 million and
$0.4 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. All eligible employees of ONEOK were eligible to participate in a similar ESPP plan, but enrollment of our
employees in that plan was terminated upon the separation. Compensation expense, before tax, charged to us by ONEOK for employees who directly supported our
operations was $2.7 million for 2013.

Employee Stock Award Program

Under the program, each time the per-share closing price of our common stock on the NYSE closed for the first time at or above each $1.00 increment above its
previous historical high closing price, we issued, for no monetary consideration, one share of our common stock to all eligible employees. The total number of
shares of our common stock authorized for issuance under this program is 125,000 . Shares issued to employees under this program during 2015 and 2014 totaled
23,506 and 35,324 , and compensation expense, before taxes, related to the Employee Stock Award Program was $1.1 million and $2.5 million for 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Compensation expense, before taxes, charged to us by ONEOK related to a similar program to ours that was administered by ONEOK for employees
who directly supported our operations was $4.2 million for 2013.

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

Prior to separation, certain employees participated in the Plans sponsored by ONEOK. We accounted for the Plans as multiemployer benefit plans. These defined
benefit pension and other postemployment benefit costs included amounts associated with vested participants who are no longer employees. As described in Note
2, prior to 2014, ONEOK also charged us for the allocated cost of certain employees of ONEOK who provided general and administrative services on our behalf.
ONEOK included an allocation of the benefit costs associated with these ONEOK employees based upon its allocation methodology, not necessarily specific to the
employees providing general and administrative services on our behalf.

Retirement Plans - We have a defined benefit pension plan covering nonbargaining-unit employees hired before January 1, 2005, and certain bargaining-unit
employees hired before December 15, 2011. Nonbargaining unit employees hired after December 31, 2004; employees represented by Local No. 304 of the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) hired on or after July 1, 2010; employees represented by the United Steelworkers hired on or after
December 15, 2011; and employees who accepted a one-time opportunity to opt out of the defined benefit pension plan are covered by a profit-sharing plan.
Certain employees of the Texas Gas Services division were entitled to benefits under a frozen cash-balance pension plan. In addition, we have a supplemental
executive retirement plan for the benefit of certain officers. No new participants in the supplemental executive retirement plan have been approved since 2005, and
it was formally closed to new participants as of January 1, 2014. We fund our defined benefit pension costs at a level needed to maintain or exceed the minimum
funding levels required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the Pension Protection Act of 2006. Pension expense was
$38.0 million and $27.1 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, prior to regulatory deferrals. Pension expense charged to us by ONEOK for employees directly
supporting our operations totaled $35.0 million for 2013, prior to regulatory deferrals.

Other Postemployment Benefit Plans - We sponsor health and welfare plans that provide postemployment medical and life insurance benefits to certain
employees who retire with at least five years of service. The postemployment medical plan is contributory based on hire date, age and years of service, with retiree
contributions adjusted periodically, and contains other cost-sharing features such as deductibles and coinsurance. Other postemployment benefit expense was $5.0
million and $5.9
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million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, prior to regulatory deferrals. Other postemployment benefit expense charged to us by ONEOK for employees directly
supporting our operations totaled $12.3 million for 2013, prior to regulatory deferrals.

Plan Amendments - In October 2015, plan amendments were approved to merge our frozen cash-balance defined benefit pension plan covering certain Texas Gas
Service employees with our defined benefit pension plan covering certain eligible employees. In addition, we announced to eligible pre-65 participants in our
postemployment medical plans a change from a self-insured postemployment medical plan to a plan providing participants an annual benefit that will allow them
to select coverage on a healthcare exchange. As a result, we remeasured the respective plan assets and benefit obligations, effective October 1, 2015, which
resulted in a reduction in benefit obligations of our postemployment benefit plan of $11.9 million . Net periodic benefit cost for the plans in 2015 was reduced by
$3.4 million .

Actuarial Assumptions - The following table sets forth the weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for pension and postemployment
benefits for the periods indicated:

  December 31,

  2015  2014

Discount rate  4.75%  4.25%

Compensation increase rate  3.35% - 3.40%  3.30% - 3.50%

The following table sets forth the weighted-average assumptions used by us, and ONEOK prior to 2014, to determine the periodic benefit costs for the periods
indicated:

  
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
Three Months Ended

December 31,  Years Ended December 31,

  2015  2015  2014  2013

Discount rate - pension plans  4.25%  4.75%  5.25%  4.25%

Discount rate - other postemployment plans  4.25%  4.75%  5.00%  4.00%

Expected long-term return on plan assets  7.75%  7.75%  7.75%  8.25%

Compensation increase rate  3.30% - 3.50%  3.30% - 3.50%  3.35% - 3.50%  3.45% - 3.50%

We determine our overall expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, based on our review of historical returns and economic growth models. At
December 31, 2014, we updated our assumed mortality rates to incorporate the new set of mortality tables issued by the Society of Actuaries in October 2014.

We determine our discount rates annually.  We estimate our discount rate based upon a comparison of the expected cash flows associated with our future payments
under our defined benefit pension and other postemployment obligations to a hypothetical bond portfolio created using high-quality bonds that closely match
expected cash flows.  Bond portfolios are developed by selecting a bond for each of the next 60 years based on the maturity dates of the bonds.  Bonds selected to
be included in the portfolios are only those rated by Moody’s as AA- or better and exclude callable bonds, bonds with less than a minimum issue size, yield outliers
and other filtering criteria to remove unsuitable bonds.

Regulatory Treatment - The OCC, KCC and regulatory authorities in Texas have approved the recovery of pension costs and other postemployment benefits
costs through rates for Oklahoma Natural Gas, Kansas Gas Service and Texas Gas Service, respectively. The costs recovered through rates are based on current
funding requirements and the net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit pension and other postemployment costs. Differences, if any, between the expense and
the amount recovered through rates would be reflected in earnings, net of authorized deferrals.

We historically have recovered defined benefit pension and other postemployment benefit costs through rates. We believe it is probable that regulators will
continue to include the net periodic pension and other postemployment benefit costs in our cost of service.
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Obligations and Funded Status - In connection with the separation from ONEOK, we entered into an Employee Matters Agreement with ONEOK, which
provides that our employees no longer participate in benefit plans sponsored or maintained by ONEOK as of the separation date. Effective January 1, 2014, the
ONEOK defined benefit pension plans and other postemployment benefit plans transferred assets and obligations related to those employees transferring to ONE
Gas and vested participants who are no longer employees to the new ONE Gas plans. As a result, we recorded sponsored pension and other postemployment plan
obligations of approximately $1.1 billion , and sponsored defined benefit pension and other postemployment plan assets of approximately $1.0 billion , which are
reflected below as our balances at the beginning of the period. Additionally, as a result of the transfer of unrecognized losses from ONEOK, our regulatory assets
and deferred income taxes increased $331 million and $86 million , respectively.

The following table sets forth our defined benefit pension and other postemployment benefit plans, benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the periods
indicated:

 Pension Benefits  Other Postemployment Benefits

 December 31,  December 31,

 2015  2014  2015  2014

Changes in Benefit Obligation (Thousands
of
dollars)   
Benefit obligation, beginning of period $ 1,028,171  $ 863,620  $ 257,688  $ 239,171

Service cost 13,660  11,620  3,257  3,468

Interest cost 43,542  43,791  10,628  11,605

Plan participants’ contributions —  —  2,915  2,642

Actuarial loss (gain) (47,607)  159,275  (19,702)  14,998

Benefits paid (52,142)  (50,135)  (14,632)  (14,196)

Plan amendment —  —  (11,901)  —

   Benefit obligation, end of period 985,624  1,028,171  228,253  257,688

        

Change in Plan Assets        
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period 845,396  840,699  151,777  147,237

Actual return on plan assets (9,026)  53,907  1,335  6,912

Employer contributions 933  925  14,100  9,182

Plan participants’ contributions —  —  2,915  2,642

Benefits paid (52,142)  (50,135)  (14,632)  (14,196)

   Fair value of assets, end of period 785,161  845,396  155,495  151,777

   Balance at December 31 $ (200,463)  $ (182,775)  $ (72,758)  $ (105,911)

        

Current liabilities $ (912)  $ (907)  $ —  $ —

Noncurrent liabilities (199,551)  (181,868)  (72,758)  (105,911)

   Balance at December 31 $ (200,463)  $ (182,775)  $ (72,758)  $ (105,911)

The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $934.3 million and $970.7 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

There are no plan assets expected to be withdrawn and returned to us in 2016.

72

Attachment B-5



Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost - The following table sets forth the components of net periodic benefit cost for our defined benefit pension and other
postemployment benefit plans for the period indicated:

 Pension Benefits

 Year Ended December 31,

 2015  2014

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Components of net periodic benefit cost    
Service cost $ 13,660  $ 11,620

Interest cost 43,542  43,791

Expected return on assets (61,769)  (59,862)

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 266  549

Amortization of net loss 42,226  30,200

Settlements 27  773

   Net periodic benefit cost $ 37,952  $ 27,071

 Other Postemployment Benefits

 Year Ended December 31,

 2015  2014

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Components of net periodic benefit cost    
Service cost $ 3,257  $ 3,468

Interest cost 10,628  11,605

Expected return on assets (11,892)  (11,393)

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (2,228)  (1,760)

Amortization of net loss 5,268  3,969

   Net periodic benefit cost $ 5,033  $ 5,889

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) - The following table sets forth the amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) related to our defined benefit
pension benefits for the period indicated:

 Pension Benefits

 Year Ended December 31,

 2015  2014

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Net gain (loss) arising during the period $ 339  $ (3,543)

Amortization of loss 917  518

Deferred income taxes (483)  1,244

   Total recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) $ 773  $ (1,781)

There were no amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) related to our other postemployment benefits for the periods presented.
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The tables below sets forth the amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) that had not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit
expense for the periods indicated:

 Pension Benefits

 December 31,

 2015  2014

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Prior service credit (cost) $ —  $ (266)

Accumulated loss (407,798)  (426,862)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
  before regulatory assets (407,798)  (427,128)

Regulatory asset for regulated entities 400,625  418,699

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
  after regulatory assets (7,173)  (8,429)

Deferred income taxes 2,772  3,255

Accumulated other comprehensive loss,
  net of tax $ (4,401)  $ (5,174)

 Other Postemployment Benefits

 December 31,

 2015  2014

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Prior service credit (cost) $ 14,010  $ 4,337

Accumulated loss (50,447)  (64,861)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
  before regulatory assets (36,437)  (60,524)

Regulatory asset for regulated entities 36,437  60,524

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
  after regulatory assets —  —

Deferred income taxes —  —

Accumulated other comprehensive loss,
  net of tax $ —  $ —

The following tables set forth the amounts recognized in either accumulated comprehensive income (loss) or regulatory assets expected to be recognized as
components of net periodic benefit expense in the next fiscal year:

 Pension Benefits  Other Postemployment Benefits

Amounts to be recognized in 2016 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Prior service credit (cost) $ —  $ (3,633)

Actuarial net loss $ 35,542  $ 4,608

Health Care Cost Trend Rates - The following table sets forth the assumed health care cost-trend rates for the periods indicated:

2015  2014

Health care cost-trend rate assumed for next year 4.00% - 7.50%  4.00% - 7.75%
Rate to which the cost-trend rate is assumed to decline
  (the ultimate trend rate) 4.00% - 5.00%  4.00% - 5.00%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2022  2022
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Assumed health care cost-trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for our health care plans. A one percentage point change in assumed health
care cost-trend rates would have the following effects:

One Percentage One Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease

(Thousands
of
dollars)
Effect on total of service and interest cost $ 263 $ (266)
Effect on other postemployment benefit obligation $ 3,655 $ (3,752)

Plan Assets - Our investment strategy is to invest plan assets in accordance with sound investment practices that emphasize long-term fundamentals. The goal of
this strategy is to maximize investment returns while managing risk in order to meet the plan’s current and projected financial obligations. To achieve this strategy,
we have established a liability-driven investment strategy to change the allocations as the plan reaches certain funded status. The plan’s investments include a
diverse blend of various domestic and international equities, investment-grade debt securities which mirror the cash flows of our liability, insurance contracts and
alternative investments. The current target allocation for the assets of our defined benefit pension plan is as follows:

U.S. large-cap equities 37.4%
Investment-grade bonds 30.0%
Developed foreign large-cap equities 10.6%
Alternative investments 7.7%
Mid-cap equities 5.6%
Emerging markets equities 5.0%
Small-cap equities 3.7%

  Total 100%

As part of our risk management for the plans, minimums and maximums have been set for each of the asset classes listed above. All investment managers for the
plan are subject to certain restrictions on the securities they purchase and, with the exception of indexing purposes, are prohibited from owning our stock.

The following tables set forth our pension benefits and other postemployment benefits plan assets by fair value category as of the measurement date:

Pension Benefits
December 31, 2015

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Thousands
of
dollars)
Investments:
Equity securities (a) $ 405,935 $ 62,150 $ — $ 468,085
Government obligations — 44,651 — 44,651
Corporate obligations (b) — 139,396 — 139,396
Cash and money market funds (c) 5,429 10,279 — 15,708
Insurance contracts and group annuity contracts — — 56,465 56,465
Other investments (d) 2,884 — 57,972 60,856

  Total assets $ 414,248 $ 256,476 $ 114,437 $ 785,161

(a) - This category represents securities of the various market sectors from diverse industries.
(b) - This category represents bonds from diverse industries.
(c) - This category is primarily money market funds.
(d) - This category represents alternative investments such as hedge funds and other financial instruments.
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 Pension Benefits

 December 31, 2014

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Investments:     
Equity securities (a) $ 439,165 $ 66,766 $ — $ 505,931
Government obligations — 47,769 — 47,769
Corporate obligations (b) — 153,412 — 153,412
Cash and money market funds (c) 4,152 16,341 — 20,493
Insurance contracts and group annuity contracts — — 59,877 59,877
Other investments (d) — — 57,914 57,914

  Total assets $ 443,317 $ 284,288 $ 117,791 $ 845,396

(a) - This category represents securities of the various market sectors from diverse industries.
(b) - This category represents bonds from diverse industries.
(c) - This category is primarily money market funds.
(d) - This category represents alternative investments such as hedge funds.

 Other Postemployment Benefits

 December 31, 2015

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Investments:     
Equity securities (a) $ 54,560 $ 7,498 $ — $ 62,058
Government obligations — 64 — 64
Corporate obligations (b) — 200 — 200
Cash and money market funds (c) 233 13,322 — 13,555
Insurance contracts and group annuity contracts — 79,531 — 79,531
Other investments (d) 4 — 83 87

  Total assets $ 54,797 $ 100,615 $ 83 $ 155,495

(a) - This category represents securities of the various market sectors from diverse industries.
(b) - This category represents bonds from diverse industries.
(c) - This category is primarily money market funds.
(d) - This category represents alternative investments such as hedge funds.
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 Other Postemployment Benefits

 December 31, 2014

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

Investments:     
Equity securities (a) $ 49,553 $ 12,589 $ — $ 62,142
Government obligations — 78 — 78
Corporate obligations (b) — 251 — 251
Cash and money market funds (c) 964 5,894 — 6,858
Insurance contracts and group annuity contracts — 82,353 — 82,353
Other investments (d) — — 95 95

  Total assets $ 50,517 $ 101,165 $ 95 $ 151,777

(a) - This category represents securities of the various market sectors from diverse industries.
(b) - This category represents bonds from diverse industries.
(c) - This category is primarily money market funds.
(d) - This category represents alternative investments such as hedge funds.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of our pension plans for the periods indicated:

 Pension Benefits

 
Insurance
Contracts  

Other
Investments  Total

 (Thousands
of
dollars)

January 1, 2014 $ 63,454  $ 73,590  $ 137,044

Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) 3,446  (15,676)  (12,230)

Settlements (7,023)  —  (7,023)

December 31, 2014 $ 59,877  $ 57,914  $ 117,791

Net realized and unrealized gains 2,188  58  2,246

Settlements (5,600)  —  (5,600)

December 31, 2015 $ 56,465  $ 57,972  $ 114,437

Contributions - During 2015, we contributed $0.9 million to our defined benefit pension plans and we contributed $14.1 million to our other postemployment
benefit plans. In 2016, we expect to contribute $0.9 million to our defined benefit pension plans and expect to contribute $5.8 million to our other postemployment
benefit plans.
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Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Payments - Benefit payments for our defined benefit pension and other postemployment benefit plans for the
period ended December 31, 2015 were $52.1 million and $14.6 million , respectively. The following table sets forth the pension benefits and other postemployment
benefits payments expected to be paid in 2016-2025:

 
Pension
Benefits  

Other Postemployment 
Benefits

Benefits to be paid in: (Thousands
of
dollars)

2016 $ 53,359  $ 14,116

2017 $ 54,710  $ 13,875

2018 $ 56,201  $ 14,435

2019 $ 57,238  $ 14,956

2020 $ 58,901  $ 15,406

2021 through 2025 $ 311,194  $ 81,175

The expected benefits to be paid are based on the same assumptions used to measure our benefit obligation at December 31, 2015, and include estimated future
employee service.

Other Employee Benefit Plans

401(k) Plan - We have a 401(k) Plan which covers all full-time employees, and employee contributions are discretionary. We match 100 percent of each
participant’s eligible contribution up to 6 percent of each participant’s eligible compensation, subject to certain limits. Our contributions made to the plan were
$10.2 million and $9.7 million 2015 and 2014, respectively. Prior to our separation, ONEOK maintained a similar 401(k) Plan and compensation expense charged
to us for employees who directly supported our operations by ONEOK totaled $8.3 million in 2013 for ONEOK’s matching contributions to this plan.

Profit-Sharing Plan - We have a profit-sharing plan for all employees that do not participate in our defined benefit pension plan. We plan to make a contribution
to the profit-sharing plan each quarter equal to 1 percent of each participant’s eligible compensation during the quarter. Additional discretionary employer
contributions may be made at the end of each year. Employee contributions are not allowed under the plan. Our contributions made to the plan were $6.5 million
and $4.0 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. ONEOK maintained a similar Profit-Sharing Plan and compensation expense associated with ONEOK’s
contributions made to the plan for employees who directly supported our operations prior to the separation were $1.6 million in 2013.

Employee Deferred Compensation Plan - Our Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan provides select employees with the option to defer portions of their
compensation and provides nonqualified deferred compensation benefits that are not available due to limitations on employer and employee contributions to
qualified defined contribution plans under the federal tax laws. Contributions made to the plan were not material in 2015 and 2014. ONEOK maintained a similar
plan and contributions made to the plan for employees who directly supported our operations prior to the separation were not material in 2013.
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13. INCOME TAXES

The following table sets forth our provision for income taxes for the periods indicated:

 Years Ended December 31,

 2015  2014  2013

 ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Current income tax provision      
Federal $ 7,135  $ 17,006  $ —

State 2,055  1,397  67

Total current income tax provision 9,190  18,403  67

Deferred income tax provision      
Federal 56,440  42,024  53,562

State 7,349  7,911  8,643

Total deferred income tax provision 63,789  49,935  62,205

Total provision for income taxes $ 72,979  $ 68,338  $ 62,272

The following table is a reconciliation of our income tax provision for the periods indicated:

 Years Ended December 31,

 2015  2014  2013

 ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Income before income taxes $ 192,009  $ 178,128  $ 161,467

Federal statutory income tax rate 35%  35%  35%

Provision for federal income taxes 67,203  62,345  56,513

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 6,114  6,051  5,661

Other, net (338)  (58)  98

Total provision for income taxes $ 72,979  $ 68,338  $ 62,272

Prior to our separation from ONEOK, our operations were included in the consolidated federal and state income tax returns of ONEOK. Our income tax provision
was calculated on a separate return basis. Accordingly, we recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities for the difference between the financial statement and
income tax basis of assets and liabilities and carry-forward items, based on income tax laws and rates existing at the time the temporary differences are expected to
reverse as if we had been a corporation for federal and state income tax purposes. In addition, ONEOK managed its tax position based upon the tax attributes of the
consolidated group. Certain attributes may not be available to use if we had been operating as an independent company.

The following table sets forth the tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities for the periods
indicated:

 December 31,

 2015  2014

 ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Deferred tax assets    
Employee benefits and other accrued liabilities $ 110,148  $ 128,715

Net operating loss —  8,144

Other 7,848  5,655

Total deferred tax assets 117,996  142,514

Deferred tax liabilities    
Excess of tax over book depreciation 897,667  820,853

Purchased-gas cost adjustment 3,999  16,177

Other regulatory assets and liabilities, net 168,115  193,159

Total deferred tax liabilities 1,069,781  1,030,189

Net deferred tax liabilities $ 951,785  $ 887,675

79

Attachment B-5



At December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had income taxes receivable of $38.9 million and $43.8 million , respectively.

Prior to our separation from ONEOK, we were included in the ONEOK income tax returns for all applicable years. We file income tax returns in the United States
federal jurisdiction as well as in the states where we have operations. In 2015, we filed our initial United States consolidated federal tax return for the period
February 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

We have adopted ASU 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes,” early to simplify our financial reporting process and have applied it
prospectively for the period beginning October 1, 2015. Prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted.

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments - Operating leases represent future minimum lease payments under noncancelable leases covering office space, facilities and information
technology hardware and software. Rental expense was $5.0 million in each of 2015 and 2014 and $4.8 million in 2013. The following table sets forth our
operating lease payments for the periods indicated:

Operating Leases

( Millions
of
dollars
)

2016  $ 4.6

2017  4.5

2018  4.2

2019  3.5

2020  3.3

Thereafter  7.0

Total  $ 27.1

Environmental Matters - We are subject to multiple historical, wildlife preservation and environmental laws and/or regulations, which affect many aspects of our
present and future operations. Regulated activities include, but are not limited to, those involving air emissions, storm water and wastewater discharges, handling
and disposal of solid and hazardous wastes, wetland preservation, hazardous materials transportation, and pipeline and facility construction. These laws and
regulations require us to obtain and/or comply with a wide variety of environmental clearances, registrations, licenses, permits and other approvals. Failure to
comply with these laws, regulations, licenses and permits may expose us to fines, penalties and/or interruptions in our operations that could be material to our
results of operations. In addition, emission controls and/or other regulatory or permitting mandates under the Clean Air Act and other similar federal and state laws
could require unexpected capital expenditures. We cannot assure that existing environmental statutes and regulations will not be revised or that new regulations
will not be adopted or become applicable to us. Revised or additional statutes or regulations that result in increased compliance costs or additional operating
restrictions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We own or retain legal responsibility for the environmental conditions at 12 former manufactured natural gas sites in Kansas. These sites contain potentially
harmful materials that are subject to control or remediation under various environmental laws and regulations. A consent agreement with the KDHE governs all
work at these sites. The terms of the consent agreement allow us to investigate these sites and set remediation activities based upon the results of the investigations
and risk analysis. Remediation involves typically the management of contaminated soils and may involve removal of structures and monitoring and/or remediation
of groundwater.

We have completed or addressed removal of the source of soil contamination at 11 of the 12 sites according to plans approved by KDHE. Regulatory closure has
been achieved at three of the sites. We have begun site assessment at the remaining site where no active remediation has occurred.

Our expenditures for environmental evaluation, mitigation, remediation and compliance to date have not been significant in relation to our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows, and our expenditures related to environmental matters had no material effects on earnings or cash flows during 2015, 2014 and
2013 . A number of environmental issues may exist with respect to manufactured gas plants.  With the trend toward stricter standards, greater regulation and more
extensive permit requirements for the types of assets operated by us that are subject to environmental regulation, our environmental expenditures could increase in
the future, and such expenditures may not be fully covered by insurance or recoverable in rates from our customers, and those costs may adversely affect our
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Pipeline Safety - We are subject to PHMSA regulations, including integrity-management regulations. PHMSA regulations require pipeline companies operating
high-pressure transmission pipelines to perform integrity assessments on pipeline segments that pass through densely populated areas or near specifically
designated high-consequence areas. In January 2012, the Pipeline Safety, Regulatory Certainty and Job Creation Act was signed into law. The law increased
maximum penalties for violating federal pipeline safety regulations and directs the DOT and Secretary of Transportation to conduct further review or studies on
issues that may or may not be material to us. These issues include but are not limited to the following:

• an evaluation of whether natural gas pipeline integrity-management requirements should be expanded beyond current high-consequence areas;
• a verification of records for pipelines in class 3 and 4 locations and high-consequence areas to confirm maximum allowable operating pressures; and
• a requirement to test previously untested pipelines operating above 30 percent yield strength in high-consequence areas.

The potential capital and operating expenditures related to this legislation, the associated regulations or other new pipeline safety regulations are unknown.

Legal Proceedings - We are a party to various litigation matters and claims that have arisen in the normal course of our operations. While the results of litigation
and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we believe the reasonably possible losses from such matters, individually and in the aggregate, are not material.
Additionally, we believe the probable final outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.

15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

  First
Quarter

 Second
Quarter

 Third
Quarter

 Fourth
QuarterYear Ended December 31, 2015     

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Revenues  $ 676,531  $ 256,786  $ 225,226  $ 389,149

Net margin  $ 262,978  $ 176,837  $ 170,502  $ 231,416

Operating income  $ 109,005  $ 31,270  $ 24,951  $ 73,903

Net income  $ 60,381  $ 12,076  $ 7,371  $ 39,202

Earnings per share         
   Basic  $ 1.15  $ 0.23  $ 0.14  $ 0.75

   Diluted  $ 1.13  $ 0.23  $ 0.14  $ 0.74

  First
Quarter

 Second
Quarter

 Third
Quarter

 Fourth
QuarterYear Ended December 31, 2014     

  ( Thousands
of
dollars
)

Revenues  $ 766,178  $ 296,838  $ 241,522  $ 514,368

Net margin  $ 259,836  $ 176,493  $ 166,452  $ 224,176

Operating income  $ 109,353  $ 26,812  $ 19,119  $ 70,010

Net income  $ 59,076  $ 9,454  $ 4,653  $ 36,607

Earnings per share         
   Basic  $ 1.13  $ 0.18  $ 0.09  $ 0.70

   Diluted  $ 1.13  $ 0.18  $ 0.09  $ 0.69
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ONE Gas, Inc. Attachment B-6
Financial Ratios
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Utility 
Operations

Total debt to total capitalization
Notes payable (includes commercial paper) 12,500               
Current maturities of long-term debt 7                        
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations -                     
Long-term debt 1,201,305          
Capitalized lease obligation -                     
Total off balance sheet debt 1,213,812          

Notes payable (includes commercial paper) 12,500               
Current maturities of long-term debt 7                        
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations -                     
Long-term debt 1,201,305          
Capitalized lease obligation -                     
Total equity 1,841,555          
Total capitalization 3,055,367          

Total debt to total capitalization 40%

Funds from operations interest coverage
Net income from continuing operations 119,030             
Depreciation & amortization 133,023             
Deferred income taxes (excluding investment tax credit) 63,789               
Investment tax credit -                     
Allowance for debt funds used during construction (2,600)                
Allowance for equity funds used during construction -                     
Equity earnings from investments                     -                     
Distributions received -                     
Gain (loss) on sale of assets        -                     
Deferred income tax adjustment -                     

313,242             

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized 42,980               
Allowance for debt funds used during construction 2,600                 
Interest expense adjustment -                     
Interest on off balance sheet debt -                     

45,580               

358,822             

Interest expense, net 44,570               
Interest expense adjustment -                     



Allowance for debt funds used during construction 2,600                 
Interest on off balance sheet debt -                     

47,170               

Funds from operations interest coverage 7.61

Funds from operations as a percentage of total debt
Net income from continuing operations 119,030             
Depreciation & amortization 133,023             
Deferred income taxes (excluding investment tax credit) 63,789               
Investment tax credit -                     
Allowance for equity funds used during construction -                     
Allowance for debt funds used during construction (2,600)                
Equity earnings from investments                     -                     
Distributions received -                     
Gain (loss) on sale of assets        -                     
Deferred income tax adjustment -                     

313,242             

Depreciation adj for operating leases -                     

Notes payable (includes commercial paper) 12,500               
Current maturities of long-term debt 7                        
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations -                     
Long-term debt 1,201,305          
Capitalized lease obligations -                     
Total off balance sheet debt -                     

1,213,812          

Funds from operations as a percentage of total debt 26%
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